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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
VERITASAGRO VENTUREPRIV ATE LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompan1Jin5 financial statements of M/s Veritas Ae,ro Venture 
Private Limited ("the CompanlJ "), which comprise the Ba.la.nee Sheet as at March 31, 2020, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (includin5 Other Comprehensive Income) and the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of Chan5es in l:quitlJ for the 1Jea.r then ended and a 
summanJ of si511ifica11t accou11tin5 policies and other explanatory infonnation. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and a.ccordine to the explanations.5iven 
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS f_inancial statements 5ive the infom1ation required blJ the Act in 
the manner so required and 5ive a true and fair view in conformity with the accountine 
principles 5eneralllJ accepted in India indudin5 the Incl AS, of the state of affairs of the 
CompanlJ as at Mardi. 31, 2020, and its profit and its cash flows and the chan5es in equitl) 
for the lJear ended on that date. 

BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditi115 (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of onr report. We a.re independent of the Compa.nlJ in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued blJ the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India to5ether with the ethical requirements that a.re relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is suHicien t and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KEY AUDITMATTERS 

KelJ audit matters are those matters that, in our .professional jud5111ent, were of most 
si511ificance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial slatements as a whole, and in 
formi115 our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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INFORMATION OTHER TiiAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S 
REPORT TI!EREON 

The CompanlJ 's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information induded in the Board's 
Report indudi115 Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibilitl) Report but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

In connection with our audit 0£ the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doil15 so, consider whether the other information is materialllJ 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our lrnowle¾e obtained durin5 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated 

If, based on the worlc we have performed, we conclude that there is a. material 
misstatement of this other infonnation, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothi115 to report in this re5ard. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY fOR TI-IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these _Standalone 
Ind AS financial statements that 5ive a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance includin5 Other Comprehensive Income cash flows and chan8es in 
EquitlJ of the Compm11J in accordance with the accountin5 principles 5e11erall1J accepted 
in India includi115 the Accountin5 Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, '2014. 

This respousibilihJ also indudes 111ainte11a11ce of adequate accou11ti115 records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safe5uardin5 the assets of the Compai11J and 
for preve11ti115 and detecti115 frauds and other irre5ularities; selection and application of 
appropriate a.ccounti115 policies; ma.kin5 ju¾ments and estimates that a.re reasonable a.nd 
prudent; and desi5n, in1pleme11ta.tion and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera.tin$ effectivellJ for ensurin5 the accuracy and completeness 0£ 
the a.ccountin5 records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 
tinancial statements that 5ive a true and tair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparin5 the financial statements, mana.gement is responsible for assessin5 the. 
CompanlJ 's abilitl) to continue as a 5oi115 concern, disclosin5, as applicable, matters 

related to 5oin5 concern and usin5 the 5oin5 concern basis of accou11ti115 unless 
nmna5ement either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease_ operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeiI15 the Company's financial reporti115 process. 
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hi5h 

level of assurance, but is not a 5uara.ntee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

will a.lwa.lJS detect a material misstatement when.it exists. Misstatements can a.rise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individualllJ or in the a55re5ate, the1:J could 
reasonabl1:J be expected to influence the economic decisions of users ta.ken on the basis of 
these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional jud13ment and 

main ta.in professional skepticism tl1rou5hou t the audit.We also: 

• Identif1J and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, desi5n and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk 0£ not detectin5 a material misstatement resultin5 from 

fraud is hi5her than for one resultin5 from error, as fraud ma1:J involve collusion, 

for5er1:J, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understandin5 of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi13n 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Companies Act, 2013; we are also responsible for expressi115 our opinion on 

whether the compm11:J has adequate internal financial controls SIJstem in place and 

the opera.tin5 eHectiveness of such controls 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accountin5 policies used and the reasonableness of" 

accounti115 estimates and related disclosures made b1:J mana5e111e11t. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of 111a.na13ement's use of the 5oin5 concern basis of 
acco1.mtin5 and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertaint1:J exists related to events or conditions that 111a1:J cast si511ificant doubt 011 

the Co111pan1:J's abilihJ to continue as a 5oin5 concern. H we conclude that a material 

uncertaint1:J exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modif1:J our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor's reporl I-Iowever, future events or conditions malJ cause the 

Compan1:J to cease to continue as a 5oin5 concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

includin5 the disclosures, and whether the finm~cial statements represent the 

underl1Jin5 transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materialit1:J is the ma511itude of misstatement in financial Statement that, individua.lllJ or 

in a55re5ate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonabl1:J 

lcnowled5eable user of the financial Statement ma.1:J be influence. We consider 

quantitative materialit1:J and qualitative factors in I. Plannin5 the scope of our Audit work 
and in evaluati115 the result of out. work and II. To evaluate the eflect of any identified 

misstatement in the Financial Statements. · 
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'We communicate with those chare,ed with e,overnance re5ardin5, amone, other matters, 
the planned scope and timine, o£ the audit and si5nificant audit hndine,s, includin5 anlJ 
si5nificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify duri115 our audit. 

'We also provide those char5ed with e,overnance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical :requirements re5ardi115 independence, and to communicate with 
tl1e111 all relationships and other matters that nlcllJ -reasonably be thou5ht to bear 011 our 
independence, and where applicable, related safe5uards. From the matters communicated 
with those char5ed with 5overnance, we determine those matters that were o± most 
si5nificance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and a.re therefore 
the lcelJ audit ma.Hers. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
re5ulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determil1e that a matter shotJd not be communicated in our ;eport 
because the adverse consequences of doine, so would reasonably be expected to outwei5h 
the public interest benefits of such communication. 

REPORT ON OTIIERLEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

1. As required blJ the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued 
blJ the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we 5ive in the Auuexure A statement 011 the matters 
specified in pame,raphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

'2. As required by Section 143(3) o! the Act, we report that: 

a.) We have sou5ht and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowled5e and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the CompanlJ so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Ba.lance Sheet, the Statement ol Profit and Loss indudi115 other 
Comprehensive Income and the Cash Flo.._; Statement and Cha.115es in Equib:J 
dealt with by tl-1.is Report a.re in a.5reemen t with the boolcs of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements compllJ with the 
Accountin5 Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 
o! the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 i11dudin5 Ind AS; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 011 

March 31, 2020, ta.ken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, '2020, from bei115 appointed as a. 

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

Continuation SJ1eet .. .. .... . 
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f) With respect to the adequactJ 0£ -the internal financial controls over financial 
reportin.g of the compantJ and the operatin.g effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate Report in Annexure B 

5) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best ·of our inforn1atio11 and accordi115 to the 
explanations .given to us: 

(i) The CompanlJ has disclosed the impact of pe11dil15 liti.gations 011 its 
financial position in its IND AS financial statements. 

(ii) The CompantJ has made provision, as required under the applicable 
law or accounti115 standards, for material foreseeable losses, if antJ, 
and as required on 10115-term contracts includin.g derivative 
contracts. 

(iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection I;und btJ the Compai1tJ. 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Re.gistration No.109420W 

Place of Si.gnature: Mumbai 
Date: 16/06/2020 
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"ANNEXUREA" TO TI-IE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT 

Referred to in para5raph 1 under the h eadi115 'Report 011 Other Le5al & Re5ulatorlJ 
Requirement' of our report of even date to the financial statements 0£ the CompanlJ for the 
lJear ended March 31, 2020, we report that: 

1) (a) The CompanlJ has maintained proper records showi115 full particuiars, indudin5 
quani:itative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been phtJsicalllJ verified blJ the mana5e111ent in a 
phased manner, desi5ned to cover all the items over a period ·of three years, 
which in our opinion, is reasonable havin5 re5ard to the size of the companlJ 
and nature of its business. Pursuant to the pro.gram, a portion of the fixed asset 
has been phtjsicalllJ verified bl) the 111m1c15eme11t duri115 the lJear and 110 
material discrepancies between the books records and the phlJsical fixed 
assets have been noticed. · 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the companlJ. 

2) (a) Since there is no phtjsical Inventory holdi115 in the companlJ , accordin5ll) 
reportine, under Clause 3 (ii) of the order is not a.pplicable to the companlJ. 

3) Accordin5 to the information and explanations 5ive11 to us, the CompanlJ has NOT 
5ra11ted unsecured loans to wholllJ owned subsidiaries covered under section 189 
of the Act. 

4) In our opinion and accordi115 to the information and explanations 5ive11 to us, the 
companl) has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, 5uarantees, and securittJ. 

5) The CompanlJ has not accepted anlJ deposits from the public and hence the 
directives issued bl) the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 
76 or anlJ other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with re5ard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 
applicable. 

6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified blJ the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of 
the activities carried 011 bl) the companlJ. 

7) (a) Accordi115 to infom1ation and explanations 5ive11 to us and 011 the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, and records, the CompanlJ has been e,enerally 
ree,ular in depositin5 undisputed statutorlJ dues includine, Provident f\111d, 
EmplolJees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Dutl) of Customs, 
Dutl) of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and ang other s t.9nJ dues with the 

~.._p,.-Assoc 
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appropriate authorities. Accordi11t3 to the i11fon11ation and explanations aiven to 
us, no undisputed amounts pa.1:1able in respect of the above were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six months hom the date on when they 
become payable. 

b) Accordin5 to the i11fom1ation and explanation aiven to us, the :followi115 dues of 
Income Tax and Sales Tax/Value Added Tax have not been deposited by the 
CompanlJ on account of disputes. 

Name of the Nature of dues Amount {In Rs.) Period to Forum where 

Stah1te which the dispute 

a111ount pendint3 

relates 

INCOMr. TAX INCOMETAX 1072570 A.Y.'2013-14 CITAPPEAL8 

ACT1961 

INCOME TAX INCO:tvr:E TAX 883800 A.Y.'2014-15 CITAPPEAL8 

ACT1961 

INCOME TAX INCOMETAX 2863580 A Y.'2015-16 CITAPPEAL8 

ACT1961 

INCOME TAX INCOMETAX 3007744 A.Y.2016-17 CITAPPEAL8 

ACT1961 

8) In our opinion and accordint3 to the iufonuation and explanations 5ive11 to us, the · 
Company has not defoulted in the repatJment of dues to banks. The Company has 
not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the t3ovemment and 
has not issued anlJ debentures. 

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 

5iven b1:1 the 111ana5e111ent, the compai11:1 has not raised mone1:1s by way of initial 

public offer or further public offer includi.115 debt instruments and term Loans. 

Accordint3ly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company and hence not commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
5ive11 b1:1 the manci5ement, we report that no 'fraud 11:1 the Company or on the 
compa.111:1 bl] its officers or emplotjees has been noticed or reported duri115 the tJ ear. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations ... 
5iven btJ the 111ana5ement, the 111ana5erial· remuneration has been paid or 
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

is 

Continuation Sheet .. .. .. .. . 
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12) In our opinion, the CompcHll) is not a Niclhi CompantJ. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Companl.J. 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements as required bl) the applicable accountin5 standards. 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
5ive11 bl.J the mana5ement, the compantJ has made preferential allotment of equity 
shares duri115 the year under review and has complied with all the requirements of 
section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(a) The amounts s~ raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds 
were raised bl.J the CompantJ. 

15) Based upon the audit procedures performed a11~ the information and explanations 
5ive11 by the mana5ement, the compantJ has not entered into antJ non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordin5ll), the 
provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the CompanlJ and 
hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the compmll) is not required to be re5istered under section 45 IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordi115ly, the provisions of clause 3 
(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to th_e CompamJ and hence not commented 
upon. 

For SliABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES llP 
Chartered Accounta11ts 

. 09420W 

Place of Si5nature: Mumbai 
Date: 16/06/2020 

Unit No. 209/210, IJMIMA Tower, Off Link Road, Behind In:finiti Mall, Malad (W), Mumbai - 400 064. 
Tel. : 2888 1555 /28720555 I 9152732408 • CIN No. AAC - 2949 • shabbir.rita@snrllp.com • www.snrllp.com 

-



VEIUTAS AGRO VENTURE PRJVATE l!MlTEO 

Non-Current Assefs 

(a) Property, Plant anci Equipment 

-Tnngiblc Assets 
-Goodwill 

(b) Fin:1ndul 1\ssets 

- invcslmcnts 

(c) Olhcr Non Current 1\ sscts 

Tofal Non Current Assets 

Current Assets 

{u) !n'len tories 

(b) flnam:ial Assets 

- C;;ash ilnd Cash Equivalents 
_(c) Other Current Assets 

TotJ:1 Current A~sets 

Total As5cts 

• EQl!IT:X· A~D!'..I/..BIL!TiES.:'· ·: :·;-~ , .~: .. :. 

~ 
(aj E11uity Share Capital 

(b) Other Equily 

Total Eq uily 

Ljabililie!> 

Non-Current Li:ibililies 

(n) Fin"nci ill Li.1bilities 

- Borrowings 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Tot:1l Non Current Li.ibililics 

Current Li;'lbililics 
(11) rinancial Liabilities 

- Other Fin.incial Liabilities 

Tol.'.ll Cuncnt LiabilHc:.t 

Total Equity ond liabiltics 

Tl1c nc:co111;rn11yi11g 1totcs forms fotcgral 11art of tlu• FiJ1aucial Statcmcuts 
As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associalcs LlP 

Partner 
Membership No.: 039665 

Place: Mumbai 
Dote: 16 06 .020 

,· As.i:t 

31 Maich 2020 

84877,(),1,650 

24,76,93·1 

&1901,S3,58~ 

6 6,20,638 

7 

6,20,63S 

84903,0•l,222 

_:,_, :;. ~:_ 

1,00,000 

83•141 ,73,600 

53,u2,13,Goo I 

10 J,164,77,872 

146~,77,872 

11 52,750 

52,750 

8~908,0•1,222 

,, 'As~;it '. 

·• .31 M~rch2~1i{ 

-~ . 

"1':.,: 

84881,13,803 

4,20,252 

24,07,8ll3 

84909,U,856 

6,43,S•l0 

6,43,540 

84915,85,398_ 

~:~;-. ~--i;:{ ;1; 

1,00,000 

S3,159,68,016 

83460,68,026 

l-151,77 ),72 

1454,77,872 

39,500 

39,500 

8'1915,85,398 
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE UMITED 

Stalementof Profit;ind loss for year ended 31st M.i.rch 2020 

Ri!vcnuc fron, Opcn1.lions 

Other Income 

Tot.11 Revenue 

Expenses 

Mrmuf~1cturit1g Cost.s 

Purchnsc of Stod:-h\-T,.1dc 

Ch.1ngcs ln Jnvcn1orics uf Stock-in-Tr.1de 

En,loycc Benefit E:..pcnscs 

0cptc:ci:iliun and :\mortis.1tlon Expe nses 

Flnilncc Co~t~ 

OU1C?r fapens es 

Prior Period Items 

Tot=il Expenses 

P1o!i1/ (loss} bdor~ exceplioll.il items .1nd I.Jx 

Exc, .. plion:il items 

Profit/ (lo ss) before t.1x 

'f.1x Expense 

.i) Curr.?n t t.ix 

a)Dcforre:d I:>.>.: 

Tol al T.ix Exp!!nSe 

rrofit/ Hoss) !or lhc pcrioJ Crom conlinuini; u~cr:itions 

rrofit/ Oosd horn dis~onllnucd opcr.1tions 

Tax cxpcMc of discon tinued opcr.1l ions 

l'rofit/ Closs) ftoin disrountins opcr.:i.lions (,1(1cr f;u) 

Profit/ (loss) for rhc period 

Othcc Compreh,msi\'I! Income 

· ltcn \5 that 1yiJl not lie rl!cl:issi fk't! lo proll l or IOS.'{ 

- Income tnx rclnlinr, to ill'ms th.it will not b(' rcd3ssifo.?c.i lo profil or 
loss 
- Item~ thn~ will be rccla.,:;.-.i!i.cd fo profit or loss 

• Income. t.ix rclalln& to items tl,.it wlll be rccla!;sificd to p1ofit ur 19,Ss 

Toi.ii Cumpr~hcnsit:c Income for the period 

Earnin~ pi!r equity sh3re 

a) Dilsic 

b) Di.lutccl 

Tl,c 11ccom11,myillg nous fun11s iutt•gml 1mrt of U1r Fi11m1ci11I St11tc.•u1111ts 

12 

13 

14 

]5 

16 

]7 

19 

]9 

1,25,liUO 

1,25,000 

3-1,900 

2,4•1,050 

8,29,40-I 

10,399 

8,00,67; 

19,19,126 

(17,9 •1,·126) 

(17,94,-126) 

(17,94,~26) 

(17,91,426) 

(179,41) 

(179.41 ) 

As per our report of even d.ilc attached 

For Sh3bbir ;md RilJ. Associ.ltcs LLP 
~~-~-r.;-u=a·,,n~-bo!t;,11-o~fDimtor• 

. 1~'nKumarDid. l'iil 1 

ctor 

D 2102S9 I 
. ,'i\'JVv° 

1 J" 
Kun al· 1:n;i 

Dir..:ctor \ 

DIN : 0JSSJJ98 

2,10,400 

2,10,.wu 

lS,100 

2,10,456 

5,30,G!"t 

3,599 

22,76,808 

30,SG,589 

(26,4.6,189) 

(28,-1G,·l59) 

(G.300) 

(6,300) 

128,39,689) 

l?S,39,689) 

(28,39,559) 

(2.llJ .q9) 

(283.99) 
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V!:l\!TAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Sl:tlcmr.nt of C.Lsh Flows for !he yl!,1r .:!ndcd 31st M :m:h, 2020 

A ~_.1.,,;h 1:rnw From Oesptlng Activities 

Profils befo re Tu ll: 

Add!llcss): 

Dcpn:d,1tion nnd AnlOrli sa lion E'ICpcn.ies 

Loss on Sub~idii'lry lnveslmcnt 

Intl?rest & Fin.:ince Ch;irgl?s 

Oper,'\ling Prnlit before workins C.;1pi.hll Chilngcs 

\Vorklui; C:ipital Cl1;mccs 

(Jm:rc,1sc)iDcc:rc.1sl! in Tn\'cotorics 

(Jncrl!.isc)/Occrcnsc in Trndc Rcccivalilcs 

(lncrCilSC}/Occrc:isc in Shorl Tcrm Loo111s and Adv.inccs 
(ln..:rl?.isc)/lJccrcasc in Oilier Current Asi: cts 

incrt'aS..?/ (Ckcrcasc) io olhl!r !inanci.:il liilbi!itil.'s 

Inc(c.1.:;c/(Dcc:rcas1?) in Ollu!I' Current Li.,Lilitius 
(lncrca s.!)/ Dccrc;,sc in Work ing. C;:ipit.1l 

C::r. sh Gcncralcct from Opcr;,ling Activities 

Cash Used(-)/(+) i;:cncratcd for opcnlinc ,1<.:li,..ities (A) 

13 C.,slt Flow from In vesting Activilics 

Loss 011 Non•Currcnt fnvc:.tmcnls 

Ne! Ca~h UscJ in Investing Activ ities ( B) 

C C;'lsh Flow From Fin::incini;: Activities 
ln:cn:.st Paid 
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statcmentrs for the period ended 31st March, 2020 
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Particulars 

Bank Charges, Commission and Others 
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10,399 

10,399 

:;__, .. 

· · ·, i :Asat 
• ! }." • I 

· 31 March:·2020 .. 
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VERITAS AGRO VENTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

1 Corporate Information 

Veritas Agro Venture Private Limited ("The Company") is a subsidiary of the Listed Public entity 

incorporated in lndiu . The Company is dealing in business of dealing in Agriculture & Agro 

products. 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and. Presenta~ion 

The Financiul Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian 
Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), Including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements in 
accordance with the requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles .(GAAP), 
which includes Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and 
considered as "Previous GAAP". 

These Financial Statements are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

(i) Derivative financial instruments 
(ii) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy 

Regarding financial instruments) · 

Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional 
currency. 

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has considered the possible effects ·that may result from the pandemic 

relating to COVID -19 on the carrying amounts of receivables. Unbilled revenues and 

investment in subsidiaries In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future 

uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company 

,as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external 

sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic 

forecasts The Company has performed sensit;ivity analysis on the assumptions used and 

based on current estimates expects the carrying amounts of these assets will be 

recovered, The impact of COVID -19 on the Company's financial statements may differ 

from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. 

-



2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a) Current/ Non- Current Classification 

Company prese nts Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-
Current classification. · 

An Asset is treated as current when it is: 
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

or at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other Assets are classified as Non-Current. 

A Liability is current when: 
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other Liabilities as Non-Current. 

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle. 

b) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount 
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost 
includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured-reliably. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful life 
prescribe=d in Schedule II of the Co1i1panies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

-



respect of above assets. The justification for adopting different useful life compared to the 
useful life of assets provided in Schedule II is based on the business specific environment & 
usage, consumption pattern of the <!Ssets, past performance of similar assets and peer 
industry comparison duly supported by technical assessment by a Chartered Engineer. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

Gains or losses ans111g from de-recognition of a property, plant and equipment are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is· 
de recognized. 

c) Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based ()0 the 
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or 
contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset 
or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is 
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.For a_rrangements entered into prior to 1 April 
2015, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of 
facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition. 

Company as a lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease 
that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company 
is classified as a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as a"n expense in 
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

d) Intangible Assets and Amortization 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of i;)cquisition less accumulated amortization /depletion 
and impairment loss, if any. 
Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign 
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to· 
the intangible assets. 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future. economic benefits associa:ted· with 
the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Intangible assets of the company comprises of Software which is amortized over a period of 
5 years. 
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e) Finance Costs 

Borrowing Costs includes Interest, amortisation of ancilliary cost incurred in connection 
with the arrangement of Borrowings and exchange differences arising from Foreign 
Currency Borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest 
Costs. 

fnterest income earned on the temporary investment .of specific borrowings pending their 

expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for 
which they are incurred. 

f) Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing 
for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other 
overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present 
location and condition. The valuation of inventories is done on FIFO Method. 

g} Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant & .Equipment and Intangible Assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any 
property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent 
of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognise_d in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The. recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's fair value ·less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use 
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax 
discount rate that. reflects current market assessments of the time value of monev and risk 
specific to the assets. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. 

h) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probc1ble that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
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i) Employee Benefit Expenses 

(i} Short Term Employee Benefits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering the serviee 
are classified as Short Term Employee Benefits and they are recognised in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense 
during the period when the employees render the services. 

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the 
Company makes specified monthly payments to Employee State Insurance Scheme, 
Provident Fund Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all 
applicable employees. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders 
the related service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the basis of 
an actuarial valuation on Projected Unit cost method made at the end of each 
financial year. Actuarial gains/ (losses) are recognised directly in other 
comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after 
deducting the fair value of the plan assets .. The Company determines the net 
i,,terest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by 
multiplying the net liability (asset) in r!'!spect of a defined benefit by the discount 
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the· 
beginning of the annual reporting period. 

Re-measurement of . defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment a re 
charged to the Other Comprehensive Income. 

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The. Company 
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it 
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date. 



Other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences which are 
both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of 
accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation using 
projected unit credit method. 

j) Tax Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Tax. Tax is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the 
comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovere_d from 
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that. are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) Credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent 
there is convincing evidence that the company will pay Income Tax under the normal 
provisions during the specified period, resulting in utilisation of MAT Credit. In t_he Year in 
which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordanc_e with the 
recommendations contained in Guidance Note .issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants' of India, the said asset is created by way -of a credit to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. Company reviews the same at each Balance 
Sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent 
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will utilise MAT Credit 
during the specified period. 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax. rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period. 

k) Foreign curre11cies transactions and translation 

-



Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised 
in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings th_at are directly 
attributable to the acquisition-o·r construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of 
assets. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction . Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are tra'nslated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non­
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in 
OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transaction . Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are -translated at 
the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange g<jins and losses 
arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

I) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. 

Revenue from Sale of Goods 
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have been passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, 
volume rebates and cash discounts. 

Revenue from Electricity Generation 
Sale of Power is recognised at the point of transmission of electricity generated from 
Windmill. 

Interest Income 
Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Dividends 
Dividends are recognised when the company's right to receive the payment has been 
established. 



m) Financial Instruments 

(i) Financial Assets 

Initial Recognit_ion and Measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction 
costs that a re directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to 
the fair value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (AC} 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model 
whose obje ctive is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are- solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive_ income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through prqfit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured 
at FVTPL. 

Equity Investments 

The Conwany has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and join t . 
venture at cost. 

-



Other Equity Investments 

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to 
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevo.cable. If the Company 
decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling 
of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of 
investment. However, the Company ma'y transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a 
Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e . removed from the 
Company's balance sheet) when: 

a) 
b) 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from .the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows iri full without 
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and 
either 
I) 

II) 

The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, or 
The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rlghts to receive cash flows from an .asset or 
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it 
has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred 
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that lhe Company 
has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred 
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying an1ount of the asset and the 
maximum amoun_t of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. 

-



Impairment of finandal assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) 
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized. 
cost e.g., loaJ)s, debt securities, deposits, and bank balance 

b) Financial assets that are .debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 
c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another 

financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind 
AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue receivables' in these standalone 
fina_ncial statements) 

The Company follows 'simplified appr.oach' for recognition of impairment loss 
allowance on: 

a) Trade Receivables and 
b) Other Receivables 

The application of simplified approach does· not require the Company to track_ 
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the 
credit risk since initial recognition . If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impai rment loss. However, if credit risk has 
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality 
of the instrument improves such that there is -no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment 
loss allowance based on 12~month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of 
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date. 
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the 
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity 
expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When 
estimating the cash flows, an entitv is required to consider: 

a) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial 
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the 
remaining contractual term ·of the financial instrument. 

b} Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual terms. 

c) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables 
and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e ., as an integral part of 
the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces 
the net carrying amoµnt. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

(ii) Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabiiities at fair 
value through_ prnfit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives 
designated as hedging instrui11ents in an effective hedge, as appropriate .. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans 
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative 
financial instruments. 

... 



Subsequent Measurement 

The measurement of financia l liabil ities depends on thei r classification, as described 
below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are .classified as held for trading if they ar.e 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term . This category also 
includes· derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 
Separa ted embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they 
are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fa ir value through profit or 
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria 
in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI . These gains/ loss 
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated 
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calc1,1lated by .taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

• 



Derecognition 

A financial liabi lity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogniti'on of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

(iii) Derivative Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments- forward currency contracts to 
hedge its forei&n currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial 
assets wl1en the fai( value is positive and as financial liabilities whe_n the fair value is 
negative. 

(iv) Fair Value Measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at 
each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an·asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or .liability, or 
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for 

the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing · the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best intere,st. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a·market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using fhe asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 

in its highest and best use. ~~ 
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizingthe use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All asset s and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market .prices in active 'markets for identical assets 
or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant -to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised .in the standalone financial stateme.nts 
on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of 
each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset 
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above . . 

n) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalent ii'.) the bala_nce sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

o) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholder by the.weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculat\ng diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit after tax for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weig_hted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

-



p) Segment Reporting 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the 
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The 
Company concludes that it operates under one reporting segment . Unallowable items 
include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 
business segment. 

Segment Policies 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the ac_counting policies 
adopted for preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company 
as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate _basis. 

2.3 Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to 
make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect-the reported amount of revenue, 
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these 
ass_umptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Depreciation/ amortization and useful lives of property plant and equipment/ 
intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets are depreciated/ arnortized over 
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. 
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets 
annually in order to determine th_e amount of depreciation / amortization to be 
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based 
on the Conipanv'.s historical experience with similar assets and take into account 
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortization_ for future 
periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

b) Recoverability of trade receivable 

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdu.e trade 
receivables and determining whether a provision against those receivables is 
required. Factors considered in.elude the credit rating of the counterparty, the 
amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can 
be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment. · 



c) Provisions 

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that 
there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and 
the amount of cash outflow can be refiably esti[11ated . The timing of recognition and 
quantification of the liability requires the application of judgment to existing facts 
and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of 
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of 
changing facts and circumstances. 

d) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's. 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely indep_endent 
of those from .other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an 
asset or exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their . 
present value using pre-tax discount rate that_ reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 

e) Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk 
of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making 
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on 
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period. 
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2.4 Adoption of Ind AS 

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being 
restated . Accordingly the impact of transition has been provided in the Opening Reserves as 
at 1st April 2016. The figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and 
reclassified wherever required to comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule Ill. 

Exemptions from Retrospective-Application 

(i) Business combinations 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind 
AS 103, "Business Combinations" to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 
2016 (the "Transition Date"), pursuant to which goodwill/capital reserve arising from a 
business combination has been stated at the carrying amount prior to the date of transition 
under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the exemption for past business 
combinations to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures 
consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

(ii) Fair value as Deemed Cost 

The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets at its carrying value at the transition date except for certain class of assets which are 
measured at fair value as deemed cost. 

(iii) Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 

The Company has elected to measure Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and 
Associates at Cost 

(iv) The Company has elected for exemption of recognition of lease as provided in para of Ind 
AS 116 as the characteristics of the Lease comprises of: 

a) It is for a period of less than 12 months. 
b) It does not grant a renewal or extension option to the lessee. 
c) It does not grant a purchase option to the lessee. 

Hence, the company has treated the lease arrangement as short term lease and elected the 
exemption. 

-



20 Related Party Disclosures : 

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related 

parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 

a) Related Parties: 
(l) Subsidiary Company: NIL 
(ll) Associates: NIL 
(lli} Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

o NitinkumarDidwania- Director 
o Kuna I Sharma- Director 

(iv) Enterprise over which !\MP exercise control :Veritas India Limited 

b) Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2020: 

Unsecured Loan 
Taken (P.Y.) 

Unsecured Loan 

Repaid (P .Y.) 

Advances Given 

·subsidia'ry 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Assocfot'e 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL. 

NIL 

,•.·, . 

KMP &t~eir· 
' :rel~tiy.e~ 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL . 

Enterpri_s,~ 
over"which 

l<MP exercise . 

control 

10,00,000 

(6,80,000) 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

. Totai 
:[ 

10,00,000 

(6,8Q,OOO) 

NI.L 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

-



c) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2020 : 

{Figures in Rs.) 

. ,su_b~i.diary .. '. :P,.s_soc,iaie .•' .'. K~P:~ ,t~,eir- . En~erp_ris_e Tota.I ·· ·: ·, 

Unsecured Loan 
(P.Y.) 

Advances Given 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

"-'· 
I 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

21 Contingent Liabilities_: NIL 

F.Y. Nature of Dues 

2013-2014 INCOME TAX 

2014-2015 INCOME TAX 

2015-2016 INCOME TAX 

2016-2017 INCOME TAX 

22 Auditor's Remuneration: 

For services as Statutory Auditors 

Total 

relatives _.over-which 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

KMP exercise 
control 

146,477,872 

(145,477,872) 

NIL 

NIL 

146,477,872 

(145,477,872) 

.NIL 

NIL 

Amount (Rs.) Status 
10,72,570 APPEAL FILED WITH 

CIT APPEAL 

8,83,800 APPEAL FILED WITH 

CIT APPEAL 

28,63,580 APPEAL FILED WITH 

CIT APPEAL 

30,07,744 APPEAL FILED WITH 
CIT APPEAL 

. (Figures _in Rs.) 

29,500 29,500 

29,500 29,500 

-



23 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium 

enterprises as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium 

enterprises is based on management's knowledge of their status. The Company has 

not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the 

MSM ED Act 2006. Hence, disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the 

year end, together with interest paid / payable as required under the said act have 

not been given. 

24 Capital Management: 

The Company's objective for Capital Management is to maximize shareholder value, 

safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The 

Company determines the Capital requirements based on annual operating plans and · 

long term and other strategic investments plans. The funding requirements are met 

through equity and operating cash flows generated. 

As per our Audit Report of even date attached 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
TO THE MEMBERS OF  
VERITAS POLYCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
OPINION 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Veritas Polychem 
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income) and the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, 
and its profit and its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 
 
 
BASIS OF OPINION 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the IND AS  financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 
We have not determined any matters to be the key audit matters to be 
communited in our report. 

 
INFORMATION OTHER THAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 
THEREON 

 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 
have nothing to report in this regard. 

 
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of 
these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income 
cash flows and changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting 
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Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  
 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors 
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY 
 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
Ind AS financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in Financial Statement that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statement may be influence. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in I. Planning the scope 
of our Audit work and in evaluating the result of our work and II. To evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatement in the Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
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communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the 
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.  

  
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit; 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books. 

 
c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other 

Comprehensive Income and the Cash Flow Statement and Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

 
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with 

the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 including Ind AS; 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors 

as on March 31, 2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations 

on its financial position in its IND AS financial statements. 

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, and as required on long–term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

(iii)  There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company. 

 
For MILIND MEHTA & CO 
Chartered Accountants   

 
Milind Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047739 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
UDIN No: 20047739AAAABF9985 
Date: 16/06/2020 
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & 
Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, we report that: 
 

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;  

 
(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a 

phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three 
years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a 
portion of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the 
management during the year and no material discrepancies between 
the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.  

 
(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 

company.  
 

2) (a) Since there is no physical Inventory holding in the company, 
accordingly reporting under Clause 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable 
to the company. 

 
 

3) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has NOT granted unsecured loans to wholly owned subsidiaries covered 
under section 189 of the Act.  

 
 

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and I86 
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, 
and security.  

 
5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence 

the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the 
deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.  

 
6) As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified 
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by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, 
in respect of the activities carried on by the company.  
  

7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has 
been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service 
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other 
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period 
of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.  

 
8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The 
Company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from 
the government and has not issued any debentures.  

 
9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 

explanations given by the management, the company has not raised 
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt 
instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon.  

 
10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 

explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the 
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the year.  

 
11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 

explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has 
been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Companies Act;  

 
12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the 

provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  
 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have 
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.  
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14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 

explanations given by the management, the company has made 
preferential allotment of equity shares during the year under review and 
has complied with all the requirements of section 42 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 

(a) The amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the 
funds were raised by the Company. 

  
15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 

explanations given by the management, the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

 
16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 

45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.  

 
For MILIND MEHTA & CO 
Chartered Accountants  

 
 
Milind Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047739 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
UDIN No: 20047739AAAABF9985 
Date: 16/06/2020 
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Annexure B 
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. 
VERITAS POLYCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in 
conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 
 
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSILILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued, by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
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controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects 
 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures  
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting. 
 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that  
 
1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company. 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation  of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and  

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future period are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  
 
For MILIND MEHTA & CO 
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

Milind Mehta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 047739 
Place of Signature: Mumbai 
UDIN No: 20047739AAAABF9985 
Date: 16/06/2020 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT 

TO TI-IE MEMBERS OF 
M/S VERITAS INFRA & LOGISTICS PVf LTD 

REPORT ON 1HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompa11yi118 financial statements of M/s Ventas Infra & Loaistics Pvt 
Ltd ("the Compa111J "), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement 

of Profit and Loss for the 1J ear then ended and a summarl:J of si8nifica11t accountil18 pblicies and 
other explanatonJ information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordin8 to the explanations 8ive11 to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements 8ive the information required b1J the Companies Act, 
2013 ('Act') in the manner so required and 5ive a true and £air view in conformit1J with the 
accountin5 principles 5e11erall1:1 accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Compa111:1 as at 
March 31, 2020, its profit (or Loss)° and cash .flows for the 1:1ear ended 011 that date. 

BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accorda.11ce with the Standards on Auditin5 (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) o£ the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are indepe ndent of the C01npan1:1 in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued b1:1 the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to5ether with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financid statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

KEY AUDITMATTERS 

Kel.J audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jud5ment, were of most 
si5nificance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in for111i115 our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 



Shabbir & :Rita Ylssociates .£.£:P 

Chartered Accountants 
Repo:di115 of keq audit matters as per SA 701, Keq Audit Ma.Hers a.re 11ot applicable to the 
CompanlJ as it is an unlisted co111pa111:1. 

INFORMATION OTiiER TIIAN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT 
TIIEREON 

The CompanlJ 's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other i11for111ation comprises the information included in the Board's Report includiI15 
Annexures to Board's Report, Busi11ess Responsibility Report but does 11ot include the 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

111 connection with our a.udit of the financial statements, our responsibilitl) is to read the other 
infonnation and, in doi115 so, consider whether the other information is materiallq inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowled$e obtained durin5 the course of our 
audit or otherwise c>.ppears to be materialllJ misstated 

If, based 011 the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information, we are required to report that facl We have 11othin5 to report in this 
re5ard 

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBIIJTYfOR TifE. HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The C0111panlJ
1

S Boa.rd of Directors is respo11sible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that 5ive a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the Companl.J 
in accordance with the accountin5 principles 5enerallq accepted in India. includi115 the 
Accountin5 Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibilitq also includes maintenance of adequate 
accountin5 records in a ccordance with the provisions of the Act for sa:fe5uardin5 the assets of 
the CompamJ and for preve11tin5 and detecti115 frauds and other irre5ularities; selection and 
a.pplica.tion of appropriate accountin5 policies; makin5 ju95me11ts and estimates that are 
reasonable a11d prudent; and desi5n, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal 
financial controls, that were operatin5 effectivellJ for ensurin5 the accuraclJ and completeness 
of the accountin5 records, relevant to the prepa.ra.ti011 and prese11tatio11 of the fi11a.11cial 
statements that 5ive a true and fair view and are free from material misstateme11t, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

In preparin5 the financial statements, manaaement is responsible for assessin5 the CompantJ's 
abilittJ to continue as a 5oin5 concern, disclosi115, as applicable, matters related to 5oi115 
concern and usi115 the 5oin5 concern basis of accountin5 unless ma.11a5ement either intends to 
liquidate the Compmtl) or to cease operations, or has 110 realistic alternative but to do so. Those 
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseein5 the CompanlJ 's fi11ancial reporti115 

process. 



AUDITORS' RESPONSIBil..ITY 

Slialiliir & :Rita ..:ztssociates .£.£P 

Chartered Accountants 

Our objectives a re to obtain reaso11able assura11ce about whether the financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to lraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hi5h level of assurance, 
but is not a 5uarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will alwatJs detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from £raud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the a55re5ate, thetJ could reas011abllJ be expected to 
influence the economic decisions 0£ users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional juJament and maintain 

professional skepticism throu5hou t the audit.We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fi11ancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, d esi511 and perfon11 audit procedures resp011sive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opi11ion. 

The risk of not detectin5 a material 111-isstatement resultin5 from fraud is hi5her tha n for 
one resultin5 from error, as fraud matJ involve collusio11, for5enJ, intentimial omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtai11 cm u11dersta11di115 of internal control releva11t to the audit in order to d esi5n audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. U11der .section 143(3)(i) of the 

Compcmies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressi115 our opinion on whethe r the 

compam:1 has adequate internal financial controls Sl)Stem in place and the operatin5 
effectiveness of such controls 

• Eva luate the appropriateness of accounti115 policies used and the reasonableness of 
accountin5 estimates and related disclosures made by ma11a5eme nt. 

• Conclude 011 the appropriateness of mana5ement's use of the 5oin5 concern basis of 
accountil15 and, based 011 the audit evidence obtained, whether a material l.mcertai11tl) 

exists related to events or conditions that matJ CclSt si5nificant doubt on the Compam,/s 

abilittJ to continue as a 5oin5 concern. If we conclude tha t a material uncertai11tl) exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are i11adequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 5mr auditor's 

report. Iiowever, future events or conditions malJ cause the CompantJ to cease to continue 

as a 5oin5 concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
includin8 the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlyin5 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materialitl) is the maanitude of misstatement in financial Statement that, individualltJ or in 

aeere5ate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonabh:1 knowleJaeable user 
of the Financial Statement matJ be influence. We consider quantitative materialitlJ and 

qualitative factors in I. Plan11in5 the scope of our Audit work and in evaluatin5 the result of 

our worlc and II. To evaluate the eHect of antJ identified misstatement in the Financial 

Statements. 
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Chartered Accountants 
We communicate with those char5ed with 5overnance re5ardi115, run0115 other matters, the 
planned scope and timin5 of the audit and si5nificant audit findi115s, includin5 any si5nificant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify duri115 our audit. 

We also provide those char5ed with 5overnance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements re5ardin5 independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thou5ht to bear on our indepe11dence, 
and where applicable, related safe5ua.rds. From the ma.tters communicated with those 
char5ed with 5overna11ce, we determine those matters that were of most si511ificance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the kel.J audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or re5ulatio11 precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremell.J rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences o£ doin5 
so would reasonably be expected to outwei5h the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGUIATORYREQUIREMENTS 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued bl) 

the Central Government ~11 terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we 5ive in "Annexure 

A" a. statement 011 the matters specified in pa.raeraphs 3 and 4 of the Orde r. 

2. As required bl.J Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have soU$ht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowleJae and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required bl) law have been kept bl.J the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in 
a5reeme11t with the books of account. · 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compll.J with the Accountin5 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accotmts) Rules, 2014; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 011 March 
31, 2020, taken 011 record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as 011 March 31, 2020, from bei115 appointed as a director in tenns of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 



CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

f) Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than 
Rs.50 Crores and its borrowinas from banks and financial institutions at any time 
durin8 the 1:Jear is less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from aettin8 an 
audit opinion with respect to the adequactJ of the internal financial controls over 
financial reportin8 of the compan1:J and the opera.tin$ effectiveness of such controls 
vide notification dated June 13, 2017; and. 

e) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and accordin8 to the explanations 5iven 

tous: 

(i) The CompamJ does not have anlJ pendina litie,ations which would 
impact its financial position; 

(ii) The Compan1:J has made provision, as required under the applicable law 
or accountin8 standards, £or material foreseeable losses, if am.J, and as 
required' on lone-term contracts includin5 derivative contracts. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund b1:1 the Compan1:J. 

For SHABBIR & RITA ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Re5istratio11 N 109420W 

Shabbir S Baea.srawala 
Partner 
Membership No. 039865 
Place of Sianature: Mumbai 

Date: 16/ 06/2020 
lJ.DIN: :2-00 3 3~bS7\-A AA-GM.;,_\ 8-1.i 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

"ANNEXUREA" TO TIIEINDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT 

Referred to i11 para5raph 1 under the headin5 'Report 011 Other Le5al & Re5ulaton3 

Requirement' of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended March 31, 2020, we report that: 

1) (a) The CompantJ has maintained proper records showin5 full particulars, i11cludi115 

quantitative details a11d situation o£ fixed assets. 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been phtJsicalllJ verified (wherever 11ecessan3) by the 

ma11a5ement in a phased manner, desi5ned to cover all the items over a period of three 

yea.rs, which in our opinion, is reasonable havin5 re5a.rd to the size of the company and 

nature of its business. Pursuant to the pro.gram, a portion of the fixed asset has been 

phtJsically verified by the ma.11a5ement durin5 the year and 110 material discrepancies 

between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 

(c) The title deeds o£ immovable properties are held in the name o£ the company. 

2) (a) Since there is 110 physical InventonJ holdin5 in the company, accordin5ly reporti115 

under Clause 3 (ii) of the order is not applicable to the compcn1y. 

3) Accordi115 to the infon11atio11 and explanations 5ive11 to us, the Company has NOT 

5ranted unsecured loans to wholly owned subsidiaries covered under section 189 of the 

Act. 

4) In our opinion and accordin5 to the information and explanations 5iven to us, the 

company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 in respect of loans, investments, 5uara11tees, and securittJ. 

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives 

issued blJ the Reserve Banko£ India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or anlJ other 

relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit} Rules, 2015 
with re5ard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6) 

carried on by the company. 



Shaooir & :Rita ..71.ssociates .£.£:P 

Chartered Accountants 

7) (a) Accordin5 to infonnation a.nd explanations 5iven to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the boolcs of account, and records, the Companq has been 5enerallq 

re5ular in depositin5 undisputed statutonJ dues includin5 Provident Fund, EmplolJees 

State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Dutq of Customs, DuhJ of Excise, 

Value added Tax, Cess and antJ other statutonJ dues with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) Accordin5 to the information and explanations 5iven to us, no undisputed amounts 

palJable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2020 £or a period of more 

than six months from the date on when thelJ become pa.gable. 

8) In our opinion and accordin5 to the infon11ation and explanations 5iven to us, the 

Compa11lJ has not defaulted in the repa:lJment of dues to banks. The CompanlJ has not 

taken anq loan either from financial ins ti tu Hons or from the 5over11men t and has not 

issued any debentures. 

9) Based upon the a.udit procedures performed a.nd the il1formation ·and explanations 5iven 

bq the manaaement, the companlJ has not raised monetJS bl.J WatJ of initial public offer or 

further public offer i11cludin5 debt instruments and term Loans. Accordi115lq, the 

provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are 11ot a.pplicable to the Com pang and hence not 

commented upon. 

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information a11d explanations 5iven 

bl.J the 111ana5eme11t, we reportthat no fraud btJ the Compa.111.J or 011 the co111pan1.J bq its 

officers or emploqees has been noticed or reported durin5 the 1Jear. 

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 5iven 

btJ the manaeement, the mana5erial remuneration .has been paid or provided in 

accordance with the requisite approvals mandated btJ the provisions of section 197 read 

with Schedule V to the Companies Act; 

12) In our opinion, the CompantJ is not a Nidhi CompamJ. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 

(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the CompantJ. 

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties a.re in compliance with section 177 
a11d 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 

Statements as required by the applicable accou11tin5 standards. 



!/~al'&, & !l'lita SfJjtJciafej 5£15£19 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa.tio11 ruid explanati011s given 

b11 the ma11age111e11t, the compamJ has not ma.de anlJ prefere11tial allohnent of equitlJ 

shares during the 11ear under review a nd has complied with all the requirements 0£ 
section 42 o£ the Companies Act, 2013. 

15) Based upon the a.udit procedures pertonned and the information and explana tions 8iven 

blJ the manageme11t, the companlJ has not entered into a1111 11011-cash transactions with 

directors or persons connected with him. Accordin8llJ, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) o£ the 

Order are not applicable to the Compa1111 and hence not commented upon. 

16) In our opinion, the c01npa.nlJ is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India. Act, 1934 and a.ccordingllJ, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the 

Order are not applicable to the CompanlJ cmd hence not commented upon. 

For SHABBIR&RITAASSOCIATESil.P 
Chartered Accountants 

No.109420W 

Shabbir S Baeasrawala 
Partner 

Place of Si8nature: Mumbai 
Date: 16/06/2020 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet for the period ended 31st March 2020 

- -

-

ASSETS 

1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

(b) Other Non Current Assets 

Tota l Non Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 
(i) - Trade Receivables 
(Ii) - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(bl Other Current Assets 

Tota l Current Assets 

Total Assets 

EQlJITY AND LIABJLITIES 

Equity 

1 (a} Equity Share Capital 

(bl Other Equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

2 Non-Current Liabilities 

(at Financia l Liabilities 

(i) - Other Financial liabilities 

Total Non Current Liabilities 

3 Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 
(i) - Other Financia l Liabilities 

Total Current Lia bilties 

Total Equity a nd liabilties 

The accompanying notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates LLP 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 16/06/2020 

Notes 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Asat 

31 March 2020 

165,41,846 

66,372 

166,08,218 

2,98,672 

1,19,170 

68,592 
4,86,434 

170,94,652 

1,00,000 
(9,48,930) 
(8,48,930) 

179,38,862 
179,38,862 

4,720 
4,720 

170,94,652 

i'.t1~Kumar , 1clwania 

'J;lu~ 
Kuna! S ftma 
Director ' 
DIN : 03553398 

As at 

31 March 2019 

172,07,698 

-

172,07,698 

-
2,04,797 
1,32,744 

3,37,541 

175,45,239 

~ 

1,00,000 
(9,13,023) 
(8,13,023) 

183,36,642 
183,36,642 

2 1,620 
21,620 

175,45,239 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 31st March 2020 

I --
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Revenue 

Expenses 
Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 
Emloyee Benefit Expenses 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 

Profit/ (loss) before tax 

Tax Expense 
a). Current tax 
b) Income Tax Adjustment 
b) Deferred tax 

Total Tax Expense 

Profit/ (loss) for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income 
• Items that will not be reclassiiled to profit or loss 
- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 
• Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
- Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit 
or loss 

'Total Comprehensive Income for the period 

Earnings per equity share 
a) Basic 
bl Diluted 
The accompanying notes forms integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates LLP 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 16/06/2020 

Notes 
For the year ended 

31March2020 

. 
12 6,73,934 

6,73,934 

. 

. 

. 
3 6,6S,852 

13 295 
14 43,694 

t,09,841 

(35,907) 

. 

(35,907) 

. 

. 

(35,907) 

. 

. 

. 

. 

(35,907) 

15 
,(3.59) 
(3.59) 

(Amount in Rs ) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2019 

. 
6,63,716 

6,63,716 

. 

. 

10,90,742 
366 

25,463 

11,16,571 

(4,52,855) 

. 

(4,52,855) 

. 

(4,52,85S) 

. 

. 

. 

(4,52,85S) 

(45.29) 
(45.29) 



VERITAS INFRA ANO LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement or Cash Flows for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

A Cash Flow From OpC!rDting l\ctiVltles 

Prolils before Tax 

Add/(less): 

lnleresl & Finance Charges 

Operating Prom before working Capitol Changes 

Working Capital Chances 
{lncreue)/Oec;rease in Trade Receivabl~s 

(lncre,u:c)/Decrease in Short Tt-rm Loans and Advances 

lncreue/(Oecrcasc) in Other Current Liabilities 
(tncrease)/Oecrea:;e in WorJdng Capit:)I 

ca,h Used(-)/(+) gener>ted fo r opcroting octivltlcs (A) 

B cash Flow From lnv(?stlng Acti ... itie$ 

Proceeds from disposal of Fixed Asseu 

Net C;uh Used in lnvestJnc: Actlvitics ( 8 ) 

C cash How From Financing Activities 
{Rep.3;ymer.tofl/Proceeds from-Short Term eorrowlngs 
Rcpilyments of Lone Terrn Borrowlncs 
lnter~st P.Jid 

Net Cash Used in· Fin1ndnc Activities ( C) 

Ci Net lncrca:.c (+)/ OC!c.fcilse M In cash and cash equfvalent 
cash equivalent ( A+B+C) 

cash and Cash Equivalent Open!ng Ba!ance 
Cash and Cash Equivalent Closing Balanco 

Opening B.1 lances rcpruentcd by: 
Cash and SiJnk Bil lanccs 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(I) Balances with Banks 

(1i) Cash on Hand 

Other &ank Balances 
(I) Earmarked 6.Jlances 'Aith Banl<s 

(tt) Against Margin Money for SLSC 

C.losing Balances reprc5ented by: 
C3sh and 83nk 8;, l3nccs 
Cash and Cash Equiva!ents 
(i) Balances with Banks 

(i ) Casll on Hand 

Other 8Jnk 8.il~nccs 
(Q Earmarked Balances with Banks 

(b1 Against Margin Money ror SLBC 

The iJccompanying notes forms intei:riJl pilrt of the Financial Statements 
As pe.r our report of even dare attached 

Fo: Sh;,bblr ~nd R.ita Associ:lte:s l lP 

Place: Mumbai 
Dote: 16/05/2020 

for t~e year per(od ended 31st 
March2020 

295 

(16,372) 
(16,900 

3,97,780 
(295} 

(35,907) 

6,66,1~7 

6,3D,24D 

(33,272) 

5,96,968 

3,97,48S 

9,94,4S3 

2,04,797 
1,19,170 

1,00,669 
1,04,128 

:i,04,797 

1S,042 
1,04,128 

. 1,19,170 

(Amount in Rs. 
ro r·thci year porlod ended 31st 

Mu ch 2019 

366 

(16,372) 
(17,470) 

13,61,454 

136S) 

(4,52,855) 

10.91,108 

6,38,2$3 

(33,$42) 

6,04,411 

13,61,088 

19,65,499 

10,12,206 
2,04,797 

9,04,777 
1,07,429 

10,12,206 

1,00,669 

1,04,128 

) ,04,797 



V ERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LI MITED 

Statement of Changes in Equitv as on 31st March, 2020 

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Partic4lar Mar~h 31,2020 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,000 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the 

Financial Year -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,000 

B. OTt-jER EQUITY 

Particulars Securities 

Premium Reserve 
; 

AS ON 31 MARCH 2018 
Balance at the beginning of the reporting 
period i.e. 1st April, 2018 -
Profit for the year -
Balance at the end of t he reporting period i.e. -
3l$t March, .2019 

Particulars Securities 
Premium Reserve 

AS ON 31 MARCH 2019 
Balance at the beginning of the reporting 

period i.e. 1st April, 2019 -
Profit for the year 
Balance at t he end of the reporting period i.e, -
31st March, 2020 

The accompanying not.es forms integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Shabbir and Rita Associates lLP 

Portner 

Membership No.: 03.9865 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 16/06/2020 

March 31,2Pl9 

1,00,000 

-
1,00,000 

R~serves and Surpll(s 

Retainecl Earnhig~ 

(4,60,168) 
(4,52,855) 

(9,13,023) 

Reserve~ .incl Su(-Plus 

Retained Earnings 

(9,13,023) 
(35,907) 

(9,48,930) 

(Amount in Rs.) 

Other 
To\:ill 

Comprehensive 
Income 

(4,60,168) 
(4,52,855) 

- (9,13,023) 

Others 
Total 

- (9,13,023) 

- (35,907) 

- (9,48,930) 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

1 Corporate Information 

To carry on in India or elsewhere the business of infrastructure activit ies such as development, maintenance and 
operations of all types of infrastructu.ral projects or facilities including Port related activities, development of Port 
and other related activities thereto, transportation of all types, Management and Collection of Tolls, Storage & 
warehousing infrastructure & facilities, Water management, Waste Management, Industrial Park, Agricultural Park, 
Bio Technology Parks, Amusement Parks, such other parks and zones as may be permitted by the concerned 

authorities, Commercial and Social development, redevelopment and maintenance, Housing Projects, Power, 
Petroleum and natural gas, mining and related activities, Technology related infrastructure, manufacture, buying, 
selling, dealing, importing, exporting of components &materials or any other utilities or facilities used by and/or for 
infrastructure projects and to buy, sell, lease, sub-lease any type of immovable and movable properties, and to act 
as Builders, Developers, Contractors, Sub-Contractors, Civil Engineers, Surveyors, Town Planners, Architect, 
Consultants, Commissioning agents, Estimators and Valuers for designing, engineering, erection, laying, 
construction, commissioning & maintenance of infrastructure projects or facilities and to enter into any contracts, 
agreements, memorandum of understandings, joint ventures, arrangements or such other mode of contract with 
Government of India, State Governments, municipal or local authorities, bodies corporate, persons or such other 
authorities, on such manner or methods for the purpose of carrying out the foregoing objects and to obtain from 
them the rights of all sorts for assistance, privileges, charters, licenses, approvals, no-objects and concessions, as 
may be necessary or incidental in the connection.'' 

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards ('Ind 
AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Upto the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with the 
requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which includes Standards notified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and considered as "Previous GAAP". 

These Financial Statements are the Company's first Ind AS Financial Statements. 

The Financial Statements have been prepar ed on a historical cost basis, except for t he following assets and liabilities 

which have been measured at fair value: 
(i}. Derivative financial instruments 
(ii}. Certain financial asset s and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial 
instruments) 

Company's Financial Stat ements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. The unit of 
presentation is indian rupees in lakhs. 

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic realting to COVID -19 on the 
carrying amounts of receivables. Unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries In developing the assumptions 
relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic , the 
Company ,as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of 
information including credit reports and related information,economic forcasts The Company has performed 
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amounts of these 
assets will be recovered, The impact of COVID -19 on the Company's financial statements. may differ from that 
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. ~r~--;;:~ 
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VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 202.0 

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a). Current / Non- Current Classification 

The Company presents Assets and Liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-Current classification. 

An Asset is treated as current when it is: 

a). Expected t o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

b). Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c). Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
d). Cash .or cash equivalent unless restrictep from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other ASsets are classified as Non-Current. 

A Liability is current when: 

a). It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

b). It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

c). It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

d). There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other Liabilities as Non-Current. 

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets and Liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in Cash 

and Cash Equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

b). Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost 

and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable t hat future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment is provided based on useful life prescribed in Schedule II of 

the Companies Act, 2013 under Straight Line Method. 

The company has in an earlier financial year carried out assessment of useful lives of these assets and based 
on technical justification, different useful lives have been arrived at in respect of above assets. The 

justification for adopting different useful life compared to the useful life of assets provided in Schedule II is 

based on the business specific environment & usage, consumption pattern of the assets, past performance of 
similar assets and peer industry comparison duly supported by technical assessment by a Chartered Engineer. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed 

at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. ./~~~~. 
r~;~~·)·~). 
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VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 

arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the 

arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys 

a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2015, the Company has det ermined whether the arrangement 

contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition. 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

Company as a lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to"the Company is classified as a finance lease. 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

d). Intangible Assets and Amortisation 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation /depletion and impairment 
loss, if any. 

Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to 

its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising 
from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Gains or losses arising from oerecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Stat ement of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Intangible assets of the company torn prises of Software which is amortized over a period of 5 years. 

e). Finance Costs 

Borrowing Costs includes Interest, amortisation of ancilliary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement 

of Borrowings and exchange differences arising from Foreign Currency Borrowings to the extent they are 
regarded as an adjustment to the Interest Costs. 

Interest income earned on the temporary investment -of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are 
incu.rred. 

f). Inventories 

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value aJter providing for obsolescence, if 

any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase and other overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred 

in bringing them to their respective present location and condltion. The valuation of inventories is done on 
FIFO Method. 

g). Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property, plant 

and equipment and 1ntangible Assets may 1:le impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount 
of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's cc1rrying amount 

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal 

and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 

using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments bf the time value of money and risk 
specific to the assets. 

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimate of recoverable amount. ~ ~:--. 
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VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

h}. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic bErnefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

i). Employee Benefit Expenses 

(i). Short Term Employee Benefits 

All Employee Benefits payable wholly within twelve month of rendering the service are classified as Short 

Term Employee Benefits and t hey are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 

rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the 
services. 

(ii). Post Employment Benefits 

Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company makes specified 
monthly payments to Employee State Insurance Scheme, Provident Fund Scheme and Government 
administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable employees. The Company's contribution is recognised as 
an expense in the Statement of Prof)! and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related 
service. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation which is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on 

Projected Unit cost method made at the -end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/( losses) are recognised 
directly in other comprehensive income. This benefit is presented according to present value after deducting 

the fair value of the plan assets. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined benefit liability 
(asset) in respect of a defined benefit by multiplying the net liability (asset) in respect of a defined benefit by 

the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation as they were determined at the beginning of 
the annual reporting period. 

Re-measurement of c;lefined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to the Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of 

such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has 
accumulated at the reporting date. 

Other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non­

accumulating in nature. The expected cost cf accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial 
valuation using projected unit credit method. 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

j). Tax Expenses 

The tax expense for the period comprises Current and Deferred Ta~. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the comprehensive income or in equity. In 
which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity. 

Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance 
sheet date. 

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) Credit is recognised as an asset only When and to the extent there is 

convincing evidence that the company will pay Income Tax under the normal provisions during the specified 
period, resulting in utilisation of MAT Credit. In the Year in which the MAT Credit becomes eligible to be 
recognised as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants' of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. Company reviews the same at each Balance Sheet date 
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing 
evidence to the effect that the Company will utilise MAT Credit during the specified period. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases u_sed in the computation of taxable 
profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at t he tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted 

by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabil ities and assets are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period. 

k). Foreign currencies transactions and translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominateq in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency 
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement .or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange differences which -are regarded as an adjustment to interest 
costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of 
qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the 
exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Noh-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or 
loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences ori items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement 
of Profit and Loss, respectively). 

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction .. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on 
the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on s~tt:l~m~n,_t and restatement are recognised 
. . ~~~~ 
1n the statement of profit and loss. .fvn'jl,,::.::..._::~A:~~-

f; ~/ "\';,: \'. 
(
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VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

Revenue from Sale of Goods 

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to 

the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts. 

Revenue from Electricity Generation 

Sale of Power is recognised at the point of transmission of electricity generated from Windmill. 

Interest Income 

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Dividends 

Dividends are recognised when the company's right to receive the payment has been established. 

m). Financial Instruments 

(i). Financial Assets 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized. at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, wh.ich are r:iot at fair value 

through profi t or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by 
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principa l and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

Other Equity Investments 

For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an 

instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. If the 

Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the 

statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative 

gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value 

with all changes recognized in t he statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a· part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial 

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

a). The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

b). The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass­

through' arrangement; and either 

(i). the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

(ii). the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass­
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 

transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 

the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The 

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects th2- rights and obligations 

that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the t ransferred asset is measured at the 

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 

Company could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a). Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits, and bank balance 

b). Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 
c). Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result 

from transactions that are within the scope of Jnd AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue 

receivables' in these standalone financial statements) 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 

a). Trade Receivables and 
b). Other Receivables 

The cipplication of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in' credit risk. Rather, it 

recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLpg7J.~ ~~Rorting date, right from its initial 

recognition. A11'tl/v ,.......-·-··,<:~\ l ~} .. \, 
t i ::r \ -~' '1\ f~l 1=3 ,j 
·~\-:i;>. .I :r11 \ '-"">'- / ,: 'I \'\ ~.,. -~"' _.,, ~ .. .,~ 
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VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 

whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12- month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has 

increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 

improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since init ial recognition, then the 
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime £CL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion.of the lifetime ECL whkh resu lts from default events that 

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between a.II contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 

contract and all the cash fl ows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discount ed at the 
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

a). All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 

options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life 
of the financial instrument cannot be est imated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining 

contractual t erm of the finandal instrument. 

b). Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integr~I to the 

contractual terms. 

c). Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measu_rement of those assets in the 
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, 

the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

(ii). Financial Liabilities 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 

appropriate. 

All financia l liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 

overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

Subsequent Measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classificat ion, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 

liabi lities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incu.rred fo r t he purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 

category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by t he Company that are not designated 
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are 

also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

Financial lic1bilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 
such at the initial date .of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. 
These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through 
profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 

that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischar-ged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability ls replaced by another from the same lender: on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

(iii). Derivative Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments- forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency 
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fai r va lue. Derivatives are carried as 
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as, financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

(iv). Fair V;:ilue Measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to t ransfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

a). In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b). In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 



VERITAS INFRA AND LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

All assets and liabi lities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input t hat is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjustecl) market prices in active 'markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the 'standalone finc1ncial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-as~essing 
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

n). Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

o). Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit after tax for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are 
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

p). Segment Reporting 
Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of 
various performance indicators by business segments. The Company conclude that it operates under one 
reporting segment. 

Unallocable items includes general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 

business segment. 

Segment Policies 
The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the standalone financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocable 
costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate basis. 

2.3 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The preparation of the Company's standalone financial statements requires management to make judgement, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the 
accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that 
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a). 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2020 

Property, plant and equipment / intangible assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful 
lives, after taking into account estimated residual va lu.e. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and 
residual values of t he assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be 
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company's 
historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The 
depreciation / amortisat ion for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous 
estimates. 

b). Recoverability of trade receivable 
Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining 
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the 
counterparty, t he amount and t iming of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be 
taken to mit igate the risk of non-payment. 

c). Provisions 
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that t here will be a future 
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably 
estimated. The t iming of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement 
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and 
liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised t o take account of changing facts and circumstances: 

d). Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset's or fair va lue less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the asset is t onsidered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the est imated futu re cash flows are discount ed to their present value using pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to t he 
asset. In determining fair va lue less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if no 
such t ransactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. 
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e). Impairment of financial assets 
The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the 

impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward 
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

2.4 First Time Adoption of Ind AS 

The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1st April 2017 with comparatives being restated. 
Accordingly the impact of transition ha.s been providecl in the Opening Reserves as at 1st April 2016. The 
figures for the previous period have been restated, regrouped and reclassified wherever required to comply 
with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule Ill. 

Exemptions from Retrospective Application 
(i). Business combinations 

The Company has applied the exemption as provided in Ind AS 101 on non-application of Ind AS 103, 
"Business Combinations" to business combinations consummated prior to April 1, 2016 (the "Transition 
Date"), pursuant to which goodwill/capital reserve arising fro(Tl a business combination has been stat ed at the 
carrying amount prior to the date of transition under Indian GAAP. The Company has also applied the 
exemption for past business combinatiohs to acquisitions of investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint 
ventures consummated prior to the Transition Date. 

(ii). Fair value as Deemed Cost 
The Company has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at its 
carrying value at the transition date except for certain class of assets which are measured at fair value as 
deemed cost. 

(iii). Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 
The Company has elected to measure Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates at Cost 
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

. -
, Net Block 

~ ,,r 

Short . - Descriptfon As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st Asat 31st .As at 31st As ,at31s.t I 

Additions , Deletions Additions ;Pro11Jsion of · Deletions March, 20!19 · March,2020 : 'March, 2019' · March; 2020 , March;•2020 , March, -2019 Earlier'year . , i ,. 
Tangible Assets 

Leased Land (14.91 acres) 160,17,200 - 160,17,200 9,99,058 4,57,634 74,189 - 15,30,881 144,86,319 150,18,142 
Leased Land (7.229 acres) 22,81,240 - - 22,81,240 91,684 65,178 68,850 - 2,25,713 20,55,527 21,89,556 
Total Tangible Assets 182,98,440 - - 182,98,440 10,90,742 5,22,813 1,43,039 - 17,56,594 165,41,846 172,07,698 

Total Property; Plant and 
' Equipment 

i -· 
182;98;440' , - - 182,98;440 I 'tQ,90,742 . '5,22,813 . - - 17,'56).594 165;41,846 172~07;,698 : 

...-- . 
/Z\ Orl'S' · 

.t. 

~ -\::r;:--J.-".!..: ,rC:r· · . . \ a1/ 1 \1 
I I . --:: it i::· t -<:.. 

{{";,; \ ,t); 
,,t\_ .,s.<-;tl ~~ ';';i '-;- ,·,.\'- .,:}I """,~~tJ,;,..-
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4 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

Paf!l~l?rS 
/IHt Asat 

31 Mlrch 2019 31 March 2018 

Unsecured, Considered Good 
Statutory Balances Recoverable (TDS) 66,372 

.Total 66,372 

5 TMDE RECEIVMLES 

' Particulors 
Asal Asat 

31 !\'larch 2020 31Mmh20i9 
. 

Trade Receivables 

Unsecured 
Considered Good 2,98,672 -

Total 2,98,672 

6 CASH /IND CASH EQUIVIILENTS 

Particulars 
/Is at AS at 

31 March 2(120 31 March 20!9 

Ca,h and Cash Equivalents 
(i) Balances with Sanks 

In Current Acc:ounts lS,042 1,00,669 
(Ii) Cashon Hand 1,04,128 . l.04,128 

Total 1,19,170 2,04,797 

cash and Cash Equivalents as a.er Statement of Cash Flows 
1,19,170 2,04,797 

7 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

. 

Pardwlars 
/IS at IISat 

31 Mord1 2020 31 March 2019 
.. 

Unsecured, Co~sldered Good 
Statutory Oalan<es Re<overable (TOSI 68,592 1,32,744 

Total 68,592 1,32,744 
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8 EQU11Y SHARE CAPITAL 

Partlcu1au: Asat Asat 
31 March 2020. 31March 2019 

Authorised Share Capital 
Equity Shares of ' 10 each 1,00,000 1,00,000 
{CY 10,000 shares of ' io each) 
(PY 10,000 shares of' 10 each) 

Total 1,00,000 1,00,000 

Issued Subscribed and Paid Up 
Equity Shares of' 10 each 1,00,QOO 1,00,000 
(CY 10,000 shares of' 10 each) 
(PY 10,000 shares or' 10 each) 

Total 1,00,000 1,00,000 

8.1 The reconciUatlon of the number of shares outstandlng: Is set out below: 

I Par\lq1iars As~t As•t 
31 flllarch 2020 31 March 2019 

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000 
Add/Less: ChanlCS In Eoulty Shares - -
Equltv Shares at the end of the year 10,000 10,000 

8,2 The dctalls of sharehol.dcrs holding more than 5% shares : 

Name of t he Shareholders 
As at 31st March, 2020 ~ at 31st March, 2019 

No.of Shares. % Holding No. of Shares % Holding 
VERITAS INDIA LTD 10,000 . 100 10,000 100 

9 OTHER EQUITY 

particulars 
Asat As•t 

31 Maren 2020 31 M;,rch 2019 

(i) Surplus in Statement of Profit and loss 
Opening 0alancc (9,13,023) (4,60,168) 
Add: Profit for the year (35,907) (4,52,855) 

Oosing Bal;mce (9,48,930) (9,13,023) 

Total I (9,48,930) (9,13,023) 

10 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABlUTIES • NON CURRENT 

P.a.rtlculars 
As at Asat 

31 M~rch 201.0 31 March 2019 

Deposit-VP PL 150,00,000 150,00,000 
Unsocured loan from Holding Company 29,38,861. 33,36,642 

Total 179,38,862 183,36,642 

11 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -CURRENT 

" 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31 Marc~ 2020 31 March 2019 
- " 

Clher payables 4,720 21.620 
Total 4,720 21,61.0 
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12 OTHER INCOME 

I Pa rticulars 
Asal Asat 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

' 

Lease Rent 6,63,716 6,63,716 

I Other 10,218. 

I Total 6,73,934 6,63,716 

13 FINANCE COSTS 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

On Term Loans 

- Interest on Term Loan . . 
- Interest on Car Lo~n . . 

On Working Capital Loans 

- Bank Interest {Refer 24.1) . 
- Bank Charges, Commission and Others 295 366 

Total 295 366 

14 OTHER EXPENSES 

- "~' 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31 March 2020 3i March.2019 

Audil Fees 4,720 5,440 

ROCFees 33,524 4,343 

Legal and professiolial fees 2,950 12,180 

Professional Tax 2,500 2,500 

Interest & Penalty on TOS . 1,000 

Total 43,694 25,463 

14.1 Payment to Auditors as : 

,. 
~ .... 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

31March 2020 I•• 31 March 2919 
-

Statutory Audit fees 4,720 4,720 

Total 4,720 -4,720 

15 EARNINGS PER SHAl{E (EPS) 

Pi!rtlq,ilars 
AHt Asilt 

,. ,.. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 

(i). Profit /{Loss) a ttributable to Equity 

Shareh olders of the Company (35,907) (4,52,855) 

{ii). Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 

(Basic} 10,000.00 10,00P.OO 

(iii). Weighted Average number of Equity Sh.ires 

{Oiluted) 10,000.00 10,000.00 

{iv). Basic Earnings per Share {3.S~) (45.29) 

(v). Diluted Earnings per Share {~.59) {45.29) 

{vi). Face Value per Equity Share .,~11} ~- 10 

7:,: \,O!};."!trc ·~ 



16 Related Party Disclosures : 

As per Accounting Standard 18, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties 
as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 

a) Related Parties: 
(i) Subsidiary Company: NIL 
(ii) Associates: NIL 
(iii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP} 

• Nitin kumar .Didwania- Director 

• Kunal Sharma- Director 
• Praveen Bhatnagar- Director 

{iv) Enterprise over which KMP exercise control 

• Veritas (India) Limited 

a} Transactions with related parties for the period ended March 31, 2020: 

Holding Subsidiary ASSO!;:iate KMP& Enterprise. 
their Qver which 

relatives KMP 
exercise 
control 

Unsecured Loan 2,220 NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Taken (P.Y.} (NIL) (NIL) {NIL} {NIL) (NIL) 

Unsecured Loan 4,00,000 NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Repa id (P.Y.) (13,61,454) (NIL) {NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

Rent Received from NIL 66,37,16 NIL NIL NIL 
VPPL (NIL) (66,37,16) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

b) Balances with related parties as at March 31, 2020: 

Holdin~ $ubsidiary Associate KMP& Enterprise over 

their which KMP 
relatives exercise 

control 

Unsecured Loan 29,38,862 NIL NIL NIL NIL 
{P.Y.) {33,36,642) (NIL) (NIL} {NIL} {NIL) 

Deposit Received 
NIL 1,50,00,000 NIL NIL NIL 

From VPPL 
(NIL) (1,50,00,00} (NIL) {NIL) (NIL} 

{P .Y.) 
Amount Receivable 

NIL 2,98,672 NIL NIL NIL 
From VPPL 

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL} {NIL} (NIL) 
(P.Y) 

-~ 
:\.,_~ssoc1. @ 1•fic-

1-l' .~ -- ""'·· . 

· Total 
(Figures in 

Rs.) 

2,220 
(NIL) 

4,00,000 
{13,61,454) 

66,37,16 
(66,37,16) 

Total 
{Figures in 

Rs.) 

29,38,862 
{33,36,642) 

1,50,00,000 
(1,50,00,00) 

2,98,672 
(NIL) 



17 Contingent Liabilities : NIL 

18 Auditor's Remuneration: 
(Figures in Rs.) 

Partic1,.1lars 
For the year ended For the Year ended 

March 31,2020 March 31,2019 

For services as Statutory Auditors 4,720 4,720 
Total 4,720 4,720 

19 The Company does not have any dues payable to any micro, small and medium 
enterprises as at the year end. The identification of the micro, small & medium enterprises 
is based on management's knowledge of their status. The Company has not received any 
intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the MSMED Act 2006. Hence, 
disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as at the year ~nd, together with interest 
paid/ payable as required under the said act have not been given. 

20 In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, the value on 
realization of the current assets, loans&advances, deposits, in the ordinary course of 
business wil l not be less than the value stated in the Balance sheet. The liabilities on 
account of supply of goods & services are also not more than the value of liabilities except 
written off on account of shortage/rate Difference/contract performance/Quality Issues 
etc. 



21 Previous year Comparatives: 

These Financial statements have been prepared in the format prescribed by the Revised 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Previous year's figures have been regrouped, 
reclassified wherever necessary to correspondence with the current year's 
classification/disclosures. 

As per our Audit Report of even date attached 

For Shabbir& Rita Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
F.R.N:- 109420W 

Shabbir S Bagasrawala 
Partner 
Membership No.- 039865 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 16/06/2020 

For and on Behalf of the Board 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT  

 

 
The directors present their statement together with the audited financial statements of the company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2020. 

 

In the opinion of the directors, the financial statements as set out on pages 6 to 22 are drawn up so as to give a 

true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2020, and the financial 

performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the financial year then ended and at the date 

of this statement, with the continued financial support from its holding company, there are reasonable grounds 

to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 

 

1. DIRECTORS 

 

 The directors of the company in office at the date of this statement are: 

  

Ang Teck Lee (Hong Deli)  

Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania  

 

 

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS 

 BY MEANS OF THE ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

 

 Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any 

arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of the 

acquisition of shares or debentures in the company or any other body corporate.   

 

 

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES 

 

 The directors of the company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share 

capital and debenture of the company as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the 

company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows: 

                                                                                                                             

Name of directors and company 

in which interests are held 

At beginning  

of the year  

 At end of 

the year 

    

Holding company 

- Veritas (India) Limited 

(Ordinary shares) 

 

    

Nitinkumar Deendayal Didwania 9,250,000  9,250,000 
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A. H. LOW & CO 
165 Bukit Merah Central 

#05-3679 

Chartered Accountants, Singapore Singapore 150165 

Audit Firm Number: T00PF0759B 

 

Tel: 6273-3882 Fax: 6271-7112 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

 

 

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of Veritas Global Pte. Ltd., which comprise the balance sheet of the 

company as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 

of changes in equity and cash flow statement of the company for the year then ended, and notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 6 to 22.  

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore 

(“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at March 31, 2020 and 

of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the company for the year ended on that 

date. 

 

 

Basis for Opinion  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities 

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Accounting and 

Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants 

and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

 

We draw your attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, the current liabilities of the company exceeded 

the current assets by US$16,410 and the company has capital deficiency of US$16,410. The financial 

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that financial support will be 

available from the company’s holding company as and when required. If the financial supports are not 

forthcoming, adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised 

other than in the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the balance sheet. In addition, the company 

may have to provide for further liabilities that might arise. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this 

matter. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

 

 

VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ 

Statement set out on pages 1 to 2. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal 

accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from 

unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as 

necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of 

assets. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

BALANCE SHEET 

MARCH 31, 2020 

 

 

 Note  2020  2019 

   US$  US$ 

ASSETS      

 

Current assets: 

     

Trade receivables 5  -  100,550 

Other receivables 6  2,146  2,146 

Total current assets, representing total assets   2,146  102,696 

      

      

LIABILITIES AND (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/EQUITY 

      

Current liabilities:      

Trade payables 7  1,566  1,566 

Other payables 8  16,990  15,035 

Total current liabilities   18,556  16,601 

      

Capital and reserves:      

Share capital 9  77  77 

Retained earnings   (16,487)  86,018 

Total equity   (16,410)  86,095 

      

Total liabilities, net of capital deficiency/and equity   2,146  102,696 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

 

 

 Note  2020  2019 

   US$  US$ 

      

Other operating expenses   (102,505)  (6,716) 

      

Loss before income tax 10  (102,505)  (6,716) 

      

Income tax expense 11  -  - 

      

Loss for the year   (102,505)  (6,716) 

      

Total comprehensive income for the year   (102,505)  (6,716) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 
 

 

      Share 

capital 

 Retained 

earnings 

  

Total 

   US$  US$  US$ 

        

Balance at April 1, 2019   77  92,734  92,811 

        

Total comprehensive income for the year        

   Loss for the year   -  (6,716)  (6,716) 

        

Balance at March 31, 2019   77  86,018  86,095 

        

Total comprehensive income for the year        

   Loss for the year   -  (102,505)  (102,505) 

        

Balance at March 31, 2020   77  (16,487)  (16,410) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

 

    2020  2019 

    US$  US$ 

       

Cash flows from operating activities:      

   Loss before income tax   (102,505)  (6,716) 

       

   Adjustment for:      

 Allowance for doubtful receivables – trade   100,550  - 

   Operating cash flows before movements in working capital    (1,955)  (6,716) 

       

 Other receivables   -  401 

 Other payables   1,955  6,315 

Net cash from operating activities   -  - 

      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents   -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    -  - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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VERITAS GLOBAL PTE. LTD. 

 

 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

MARCH 31, 2020 
 
 
1. GENERAL 
 

The company (Registration No. 201010094Z) is incorporated in Singapore with its principal place of 

business and registered office at 100 Tras Street #16-01 100 AM, Singapore 079027. The financial 

statements are expressed in United States dollars, which is the functional currency of the company. 

 
 The principal activities of the company are those of general wholesale trade including general importers 

and exporters and other holding companies. During the financial year, the company remains dormant. 
 
 The company is a subsidiary of Veritas International FZE, incorporated in United Arab Emirates, which is 

the company’s immediate holding company. The ultimate holding company is Veritas (India) Limited, 
incorporated in India. 

 

 The financial statements of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 were authorised 

for issue by the Board of Directors on the date of the Directors’ statement. 
 

The current liabilities of the company exceeded the current assets by US$16,410 and the company has 

capital deficiency of US$16,410. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis 

on the assumption that financial support will be available from the company’s holding company as and 

when required. If the financial supports are not forthcoming, adjustments may have to be made to 

reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the amounts at which they are 

currently recorded in the balance sheet. In addition, the company may have to provide for further 

liabilities that might arise.  
 
  
2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

 2.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

historical cost basis and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies 

Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 

 

  

 2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS – On April 1, 2019, the company has 

adopted all the new and revised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its 

operations. The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the 

company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or 

prior years. 

 

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and 

amendments to FRS that are relevant to the company were issued but not effective: 

 

 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 

 Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and FRS 8 Accounting Policies, 

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material  

 Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations: Definition of a Business  

 Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in FRS Standards  

 

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021  

 FRS 117 Insurance Contracts  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

 2.2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONT’D) 

 

Effective date is deferred indefinitely  

 Amendments to FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements and FRS 28 Investments in Associates 

and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 

Venture 

 

 Management anticipates that the adoption of the above FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to FRS in 

future periods will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the company in the period 

of their initial adoption. 

 

 

 2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the 

company’s balance sheet when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. 

 

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to 

or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 

recognition.  

 

 2.3.1.1 Classification of financial assets 

 

 Debt instruments that meet the following conditions and are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 

  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows; and 

  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely  

    payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

  

 Amortised cost and effective interest method 

 

 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 

allocating interest income over the relevant period. 

 

 For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees 

and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 

other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt 

instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument 

on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted 

effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected 

credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 

 

 The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial 

recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any 

loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost 

of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance. 

 

 Interest is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at 

amortised cost, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting is immaterial. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3.1.2 Impairment of financial assets 

  

 The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade and other 

receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in 

credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument. 

 

 The company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these 

financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the company’s historical credit loss 

experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an 

assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 

including time value of money where appropriate. 

 

 For all other financial instruments, the company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a 

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the 

financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the 

loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of 

whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of 

a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-

impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. 

 

 Significant increase in credit risk 

 

 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the 

reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial 

recognition. In making this assessment, the company considers historical loss rates for each category of 

customers and adjusts to reflect current and forward-looking macroeconomic factors affecting the 

ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The company has identified the forecast economic 

information that relate to the business of the countries in which it sells goods and services to be the 

most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in 

these factors. 

 

 The company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the company has 

reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 

 

 The company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since 

initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. 

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk 

of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the 

near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will 

not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. 

 

 The company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are 

capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 

 

 Definition of default 

 

 The company considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due 

unless the company has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging 

default criterion is more appropriate. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3.1.2 Impairment of financial assets (cont’d) 

 

 Credit-impaired financial assets 

 

 A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. 

 

 Write-off policy 

 

 The company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in 

severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has 

been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade 

receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets 

written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the company’s recovery procedures, 

taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or 

loss. 

 

 Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

 

 For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual 

cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 

company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

 

 If the company has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to 

lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the 

conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the company measures the loss allowance at an amount 

equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date. 

 

 2.3.1.3 Derecognition of financial assets 

 

 The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset to another party. If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 

the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the company 

recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 

asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 

borrowing for the proceeds received. 

 

 2.3.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments  

 

 Classification as debt or equity 

 

 Debt and equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 

financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 

 Equity instruments 

 

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 

issue costs. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 

 

 2.3.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (cont’d) 

 

 Trade and other payables 

 

 Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 

cost, using the effective interest method, except for short-term balances when the effect of discounting 

is immaterial. 

 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
 The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company’s obligations are 

discharged, cancelled or they expire. 

 

 

 2.4 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the 

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 

 The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 

present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 

surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 

from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 

will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 

 

         2.5 INCOME TAX - Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 

tax.  

 

 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 

reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of 

income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are not 

taxable or tax deductible. The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted in country where the company operates by the 

end of the reporting period. 

 

 Deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 

the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax 

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 

deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the 

temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business 

combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 

accounting profit. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or 

part of the asset to be recovered. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

 

 2.5 INCOME TAX (CONT’D) 

 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is 

settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets 

reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the 

end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 

tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 

taxation authority and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

 

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss. 

 

 

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION - The financial statements of 

the company are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in 

which the company operates (its functional currency) which is the United States dollars. 

 

 Transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency are recorded at the rate of 

exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting 

period.  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 

retranslated.  All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

  

  

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 

 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 

 

 (i) Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies 

 

  In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, 

management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates 

and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 

  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 

both current and future periods. 

 

  Management is of the opinion that any instances of application of judgements are not expected to 

have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 

  There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that 

management has made in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies and that 

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 

 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONT’D) 

 

 (ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

  The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. 

 

  Recoverability of trade receivables 

  

 The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence 

that a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of 

impairment, the company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant 

financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

 

 Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are 

estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar risk characteristics. The 

carrying amount of the company’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is disclosed 

in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

 

   

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

 

 (a) Categories of financial instruments 

 

  The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period: 

   
  2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

Financial assets:    

    

Trade receivables -  100,550 

Other receivables  2,146  2,146 

Total financial assets at amortised cost 2,146  102,696 

    

Financial liabilities:     

    

Trade payables 1,566  1,566 

Other payables  16,990  15,035 

Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 18,556  16,601 

 

 (b)  Financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements, and similar 

agreements. 

 

The company does not have any financial instruments which are subject to enforceable master 

netting arrangements or similar netting agreements. 
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(CONT’D) 

 

 (c) Financial risk management policies and objectives 

  

The company’s major financial instruments include trade and other receivables, and trade and 

other payables. The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk 

(primarily being foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors 

these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective 

manner. 

  

 i)  Foreign currency risk 

      

    Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that arises from the movements in the foreign currency 

exchange rate against United States dollars that will affect the company’s financial results 

and its cash flows. 

 

    The company’s foreign currency exposures arise mainly from the exchange rate movements 

of the Singapore dollars against the United States dollars. 

         

    At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of monetary liabilities denominated 

in currency other than the company’s functional currency are as follows: 

     

  Liabilities 

  2020  2019 

  US$  US$ 

     

Singapore dollars  2,347  7,999 

 

   The following table details the sensitivity to a 2% increase and decrease in the relevant 

foreign currencies against the functional currency of the company. 2% is the sensitivity rate 

used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and 

represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange 

rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated 

monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign 

currency rates. 

 

If the relevant foreign currency strengthens by 2% against the Singapore dollars, profit before 

income tax will decrease by: 

   

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Singapore dollars (47)  (160) 

 

The opposite applies if the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% against the functional 

currency of the company. 

 

   In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign 

exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year. 
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(CONT’D) 

 

 (c)  Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont’d) 

 

  ii) Interest rate risk 

 

   The company has minimal exposure to interest rate risk as it does not have significant interest 

bearing financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. As such, no sensitivity 

analysis is prepared. 

   

 iii) Credit risk 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparties will default on its contractual obligations 

resulting in a financial loss to the company. 

 

The company develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise exposures 

according to their degree of risk of default. The company uses its own trading records to rate 

its major customers and other debtors. 

 

   The company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories: 

    

Category  Description Basis for recognising 

expected credit losses 

(ECL) 

Performing  

 

The counterparty has a low risk of default 

and does not have any past-due amounts. 

 

12-month ECL 

Doubtful Amount is > 30 days past due or there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk 

since initial recognition. 

 

Lifetime ECL – not credit-

impaired  

In default Amount is > 90 days past due or there is 

evidence indicating the asset is credit-

impaired.  

 

Lifetime ECL – credit-

impaired 

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor 

is in severe financial difficulty and the 

company has no realistic prospect of 

recovery.  

Amount is written off  

 

 

The table below details the credit quality of the company’s financial assets as well as 

maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades: 

    

  

 

Note 

Internal 

credit 

rating 

12-month 

or lifetime 

ECL 

Gross 

carrying 

amount 

 

Loss 

allowance 

Net 

carrying 

amount 

    US$ US$ US$ 

2020       

Trade receivables  5 (i) Lifetime 

ECL 

(simplified 

approach) 

100,550 (100,550) - 

     (100,550)  
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(CONT’D) 

 

 (c)  Financial risk management policies and objectives (cont’d) 

 

 iii) Credit risk (cont’d) 

   

  

 

Note 

Internal 

credit 

rating 

12-month 

or lifetime 

ECL 

Gross 

carrying 

amount 

 

Loss 

allowance 

Net 

carrying 

amount 

    US$ US$ US$ 

2019       

Trade receivables  5 (i) Lifetime 

ECL 

(simplified 

approach) 

100,550 - 100,550 

     -  

 

 (i) The company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision 

matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the 

debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future 

economic conditions. 

 

The company has adopted procedures in extending credit terms to customers and in 

monitoring its credit risk. The company only grants credit to creditworthy counterparties. 

Deposits are considered to be low risk and the loss allowance is determined at an amount 

equal to 12-month ECL. 

 

Although the company’s credit exposure is concentrated mainly in Singapore, it has no 

significant concentration of credit risk with any single customer or group of customers. The 

company does not require any collateral in respect of trade receivables. 

 

 iv) Liquidity risk 

 

   Liquidity risk is managed by matching the payment and receipt cycle. The company’s 

operations are financed mainly through equity and accumulated profits. 

 

   All financial liabilities in 2019 and 2020 are repayable on demand or due within 1 year from the 

end of the reporting period, and are non-interest bearing. 

   

  v)  Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 

    

   The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables approximate 

their respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial 

instruments.  
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL RISKS MANAGEMENT 

(CONT’D) 

 

 (d) Capital risk management policies and objectives 

 

The company reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the company will be able 

to continue as a going concern. The capital structure of the company comprises only of share capital 

and retained earnings. The company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2019. 

 

Management reviews the capital structure on an annual basis to balance its overall capital 

structure through the issue of new capital and distribution of dividend. 

 

The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements for the year ended 

March 31, 2020 and 2019. 

 

 

5. TRADE RECEIVABLES 

  

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Third parties 100,550  100,550 

Loss allowance (100,550)  - 

 -  100,550 

 

 The average credit period on sale of goods is 30 days (2019: 30 days). No interest is charged on the 

outstanding balance.  

 

Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 

losses (ECL). The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past 

default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for 

factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors 

operate. The company has recognised a loss allowance of 100% against all receivables over 90 days past 

due because historical experience has indicated that these receivables are generally not recoverable. 

 

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current 

reporting period. 

 

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial 

difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

 

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables from contracts with customers based on the 

company’s provision matrix. As the company’s historical credit loss experience does not show 

significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance 

based on past due status is not further distinguished between the company’s different customer base. 

 

 Trade receivables – days past due 

2020 More than 90 days Total 

 US$ US$ 

Expected credit loss rate 100%  

Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 100,550 100,550 

Lifetime ECL (100,550) (100,550) 

  - 
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5. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 
  

 Trade receivables – days past due 

2019 More than 90 days Total 

 US$ US$ 

Expected credit loss rate 0%  

Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 100,550 100,550 

Lifetime ECL - - 

  100,550 

 

The movements in credit loss allowance are as follows: 

 

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Loss allowance recognised in profit or loss during the year on:    

- Assets originated 100,550  - 

Balance at the end of the year 100,550  - 

 

 

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES 

   

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Deposits 2,146  2,146 

 

  

7. TRADE PAYABLES 

  

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Third parties 1,566  1,566 

 

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 180 days (2019: 180 days). No interest is charged on 

the outstanding balance. 

 

 

8. OTHER PAYABLES 

  

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Accrued expenses 2,347  7,999 

Other payables 14,643  7,036 

 16,990  15,035 

  

 The company’s other payables that are not denominated in the functional currency are as follows: 

  

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Singapore dollars 2,347  7,999 
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9. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

 2020  2019  2020  2019 

 Number of ordinary shares  US$  US$ 

        

Issued and fully paid:        

At the beginning and end of the year      100  100  77  77 

 

         Fully paid ordinary shares, which have no par value, carry one vote per share and carry a right to 

dividends as and when declared by the company. 

 

 

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 

 

 Loss before income tax includes the following charges: 

 

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Allowance for doubtful receivables – trade  100,550  - 

 

 

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

 

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Current -  - 

Total income tax expense -  - 

 

 Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2019: 17%) of the estimated assessable loss for the year.  

 
 The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting loss as follows: 

 

 2020  2019 

 US$  US$ 

    

Loss before income tax (102,505)  (6,716) 

 

Income tax benefit calculated at 17% (2019: 17%) (17,426)  (1,142) 

Non-allowable items 17,426  1,142 

Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss -  - 

 

Subject to the agreement by the tax authorities, at the end of the reporting period, the company has 

unutilised tax losses of US$4,469 (2019: US$4,469) available for offset against future profits. 

Unutilised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely subject to the conditions imposed by law 

including the retention of majority shareholders as defined. 

 

Unutilised tax benefits arising from these unabsorbed tax losses have not been recognised as there is no 

reasonable certainty of their realisation in future years. 

 

  




